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1.

THE HISTCRY OF THE
Hs He FRANKLIN MANUFACTURING COMPANY,

In 1892 Mra He He Franklin worked in a print-

ers establishment in Coxsackie learning the
printer's trade.

It was during this time that Mr. Franklin
became acquainted with Mr. He 7« Underwood, of
Yonkers, N.Y., who had devised a means of mak-
ing castings by a process of foreing metal into
steel moulds so that the ocastings came out
smooth and sharp without machining. . Hea neso-
tiated with Mr. Underwood to purchase this in-
vantion, and ocame to Syraouse and started in the
die-casting business at 241 W. Onondaga Street,
on July 14, 1893, under the firm name of H. Ha.
Franklin Mamufacturing Comnany.
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The agreement with Mr.Underwood
was drawn up and signed on August 3, 1893.
It provided that Mr. Underwood should
transfer to Mr. Franklin all rights and
title to his invention and should receive
as compensation 10% of the net profits of
the business. 1In addition, Mr. Underwood
was t0 receive mechanic's wages for six
months and certain other specified wages

thereafter, Mr. Franklin providing the

capital to develop the invention and carry
on the business.

The room occupied by them in
their work was small, costing $15.00 per
mmonth. All of the work was done by Mr.
Franklin and Mr. Underwood and consisted
of experiments necessary for the perfect-
ing of the process and the metal used.

On August 31, 18938, Mr. H. H.
Franklin made application for a patent
covering the die casting process, which
patent was granted February 15, 1895.
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In addition to developing and
experimenting with the die casting process,
novelties were worked up consisting of a
match strike ard sash lock. These were
perfected during the latter part of 1893
and met with moderate success.

July 28, 1894, Mr. Franklin
purchased of Mr. Underwood all rights and
title to the business ineluding his 10%
interest in the net profits; and then
carried on the business alone until Aug.
18, 1894, when a co-partnership was formed,
consisting of: :

Mr. He Hoe Franklin
Mr. H. K. Chadwick

", Mr. G. H. Stilwell

Mr. James Pass
Mr. A. P, Seymour

In forming this co-partnership,
it was with the understanding that it was
to take the form of a corporation when
orders for casting work to the amount of
$1000 had been received and filled.

At first the amount of capitaliza-
tion was agreed upon to be $50,000.00,
$30,000.00 to be issued as fully paid stock

- and distributed amongst the co-partners.

The capitalization, however, was later in-

.ereased.
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With the development of the
process, the business gradually grew and
in November, 1895, had assumed such pro-
portions that it was found necessary to
move to other quarters. These were
secured at 111 North Franklin 8t., the
rent of which was less than the Onondaga
8t. building, being but $10.00 per month.

On November R5, 1895, Mr. James
Pass addressed a letter to the H. H.
Franklin Mfg. Co. calling attention to
the faot that from business conditions
and according to agreement, the time had
arrived for the incorporation of the Com-
pany and requested that a meeting for that
purpose be called and in accordance there-
with the Company was incorporated in Dec=-

“ember, 1895, the capital stock being

$100,000.00, $76,800.00 being the amount
on which the business under incorporation
was begun.

The first Stockholders Meeting
was held December 31, 1895, at the residencse
of Mr. A. P. Seymour, Syracuse, N. Y., at
whioh meeting the entire paid up stock was
represented, those present being:

Mr. He He Franklin
James Pass

H. K. Chadwick

G. H. Stilwall

A. P. Seymour
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Mr. Jemes Pass was made Temporary
Chairman and lr. H. K. Chadwick Temporary
Secretary. Upon motion of Mr. Stilwell,
the By-Laws of the Company as submitted,
were adopted. The number of stockholders
being five and the directors the same
number, all stockholders were made Direc-~
tors.

A meeting of the Directors with
all present, was held directly after the
ad journment of the Stockholders Meeting,
Mr. Pass acting as Temporary Chairman.
The following officers were elected:

James Pass, President

G. H. Stilwell, Vice.-Pres.
He K+ Chadwick, Secretary
H. H. Franklin, Treasurer.

At this meeting a resolution was
offered and adopted covering the purchase
of patents Nos. 533,885 and 533,888 from
Messrs. H. H. Franklin, James Pass, A. P.
Seymour, H. K. Chadwiok and G. H. 8tilwell,
which purchase was subjeot to the royalty
olaim of H. H. Franklin and in considera-
tion of this purchase and the transferring
of their interests, $72,800.00 worth of
stock was transferred by the H. H. Franklin
H.fgt Coe. to then. )
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On January 2, 1896, at the Com-
pany's 0ffice, 111 N. Franklin 8t., ocoured
the First Annual Stockholders Meeting, the

same Directors being elected. Also, at the
Director's Meeting were re-elected the
O0fficers of the previous year.

On February 3, 1896, Mr. H. H.
Franklin, at a meeting of the Board of
Directors, was elected General Manager to
act until the next Annual Stockholders
Meeting, or until January, 1897.

During 1896 there was a small
amount of business done, the force in all
consisting of two men, one girl and the
Manager, the girl receiving $6.00 per week
and the men $1.25 and $1.50 per day. :

After September 1, 1898, the
factory ran only about one-half time.

Until January 1, 1896, the
principal customer wes. the Ameriocan Grapha-
phone Co., three others being added later
in the year. During this year some adver-
tising was done with a view of securing
novelties or other articles to manufacture

‘and market.
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The chlef advancement throughout
the year 1896 was the bringing out of a
new and harder metal which cost less and
gave better results than those previously
used. Numerous concerns sent their repre-
gentatives and in various ways attempted
to find out the secret of the Franklin
process.

During the year the Canadian
patents covering die casting process were
purchased. Total sales for the year amount-
ed to about $8,000.00.

In January, 1897, at the Company's
Office, occurred the Second Annual Stook-
holders Meeting, at which time the Directors
of the past year were re-elected as were the
officers at the Board of Directors Meeting
held directly after the Stockholders Meeting.

During the fore part of 1897 there
was little business done, in fact up to June
there was less done than the previous year.

" During May, 1897, there were no orders receiv-

ed and no work turned out. In June, 1897,
new apparatus, consisting of a motor, furnace
and blower, were installed.

On June 17, 1897, patent covering
molding apparatus was filed.
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During the early part of 1897
the Cornell University rendered a very
encouraging report based on an analysis
which they had made of the Franklin metal.

Later in the year, or about
Aupgust, business began to pick up and
inerease so rapidly that Mr. H. H. Franklin
supgested putting on an extra man and adding
gome new equipment so that he, Mr. Franklin,
could devote more time to the office and the
securing of orders. York was so pressing
at this time that it was found necessary to
work nights and Mr. Franklin was arriving
at the shop as early as 6:15 A. M. in order

‘to fire up and get things in operation to

produce the work. On account of these con-
ditions it was, therefore, decided to put
on a foreman, the first one in the history
of the Company.

On Jamuary 6, 1898, the Third
Annual Meeting of the Stockholders was call-
ed but no quorum being present, it was ad-
journed until January 11, at which time it
was held at the offices of the Company.
Mr. He H., Franklin, James Pass, A. P. Seymour,
H. X. Chadwick and G. H. Stilwell were elect-
ed Direotors. At the meeting of the Board
or Directors held the same day, Mr. A. P.
Seymour was elected President in place of
James Pass, G. H. Stilwell Vice-President,
H- K. Chadwick Secretary and H. H. Franklin
Treasurer and General Manager.



2% About this time some new machin-
ery was put in, consisting of a drill press,
shaper, lathe and emery grinder, costing in
all approximately $1,000.00. 8ix men were
now at work and business in general was in
a good condition. One molding machine was
made in the shop during February 1898. In
March business was still on the increase
and the question of installing a Plating
Department was given consideration. The
increased amount of business at this time
was dus t0o work obtained from the Standard
Sewing Machine Co., American Graphaphone Co.,
and several other large concerns.

1

i .,
28 On July 12, 1898, at a meeting of |
the Directors, James Pass and A. P. Seymour é’
resigned as Directors and officers of the %
Company, they having disposed of their stock N
to Alexander T. Brown, W. C. Lipe and H. W. S {5
Chapin and H. K. Chadwick. Alexander T. M
Brown and V. C. Lipe were eleoted Directors, (>
thus £illing the vacanoies caused by the N\ 5’

resignation of Messrs. Pass and Seymour.

29. At this meeting the Directors
considered the question of moving to the
Lipe estate but no decision was reached.

- Business continued good and increased to

such an extent that at the expiration of .
the lease of 1lll North Franklin St. in
October, 1898, the question of moving to
the Lipe estate was esgain given considera-
tion.
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Throughout the balance of the
year there was a steady development and
improvement as well as a large increase
in business and conditions in general.

On January 14, 1899, ocecurred
the Fourth Anmuial Stockholders Meeting
at which 687 shares of stock were represent-
ed, the total nmumber issued up to this time
being 752 shares. At this meeting the same
Direotors were elected as were elscted at
the special meeting of July 12, 1898. At
the Directors meeting held the same day the
officers of the previous year were re-elect-
ed.!

About this time the question of
moving was referred to the General Manager,
space in the Industrial Building being
given consideration but this plan vwas
abandoned. :

. Business.ocontinued good through
Jamary and February, 1899, and February
24~ 27, with but three days! interference
to the work in process, the office and shop
were moved tc the new and more commodius
quarters in the C. E. Lipe estate building,
#3208 gouth Geddes 8t. The rent for space
occupied was $35.00 per month, which was
divided as follows: $15.00 for shop,
$15.00 for the office and $5.00 for horse
powers '
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The shop in size was 21 x 48 ft.,
with storage room in the attic and base-
ment. A nice husiness was being done
at this time and conditions all around
seemed better after occupancy of the new
quarters.

March 17, 1899, they began using
Blast Furnace 38.

In May, 1899, there were four
machines in operation. Mr. George Stroh
was employed as Foreman and arrangements
were made with Mr. H. . Chapin to make
one trip a month. The trips of Mr. Chapin

. brought good results in the way of new

orders and missionary work done by him
later brought added orders.

In June, 1899, additional space
was taken in the Live estate building,
bringing the rent up to $40.00 per month.
Dividends were declared from time to time
and the business as a whole was in a most
healthy condition. Increased business
called for greater facilities and another
casting machine, #b6, was added June 2,
1899. This machine had small plunger and
pot which were found to be too small and
wvere digearded. June 68, with regular size
plungerand pot, machine #5 was started and
found to be all right. With a force of 14

men and one boy in the Machine 8S8hop and
Foundry, the work was taken care of in a

very satisfactory manner.
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In September, 1899, there was an
unusual amount of businegs done-- in fact,
80 rmuch that it was necessary to have some
work done outside.

In October, 1899, it was decided
to exhibit at Paris Exposition.

November, 1899, saw another in-
crease in the force, the total pay roll
for this month ineluding lanager's salary
now being $1026.48.

During December, 1899, there

“was also an exceptionally large amount of

business, this amounting to $2,000.00 more
than November, orders being received for

a total number of 35,750 castings.

The Adjourned Fifth Annual
Stockholders Meeting was held at the Com-

pany's office January 20, 1900, at which

time the same Directors as had acted during
the previous year, were elected and at the
Directors Meeting held the same day, were
also elected the officers who had held office
during the previous year.
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Business and financial showing
during January and February, 1900, were
good, some advertising being done with
marked results. A catalogue was issued
whioh brought out mueh favorable comment
and assisted materially in the seouring
of new business. This condition eon-
tinued during March with a slight falling
off in April, and continued good in Hay,
120,000 castings being ordered during the
latter month.

In June, 1900, more space was
obtained from the Lipe Estate, the total
rent--power included--now being increased
to $563.00 per month, the cost of power

" amounting to $15.00 per month. Some addi-

tional machinery was put in, as was the
case in July.

The increased business with lack
of space, caused the abandonment.of some
experimental work. August and September,
1900, found the shop 200,000 castings behind
their orders.

October 3, 1900, machine #7 was
started. This machine had central legs
and a small pot. Seven machines were now
in operation and the force of men had been
inoreased to'35. More space was required
in October, the shipping room being separate
from the foundry.
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In November, 1900, another machine
was put in operation making a total of 8.
December showed a slight falling off in
business but with that done in the first few
months, a good bank surplus had been acquir-
ed.

During the year of 1900 several
sample castings of different kinds of metal
were sent to the Harvard University. The
United States Commission also placed samples
of this Company's work in the Mining &
Metallurgy Building at the Paris Exposition,
which exhibit was awarded a silver medal.

At this time the Company was
represented in several of the larger cities.
Novelties of different kinds were being
made by the die cast process and marketed
at a good profit, among these being the
coal hod which was sold in large quantities.

Additions to the factory were
also made in the way of up-to-date appli-
ances, time clocks,.electric fans, etc.

" The Adjourned Sixth Annual Meeting
of the Stockholders was held Jamuary 16,
1901, with the same Direotors remaining in
power. All the officers were re-elected at
the Directors meeting held the same day.
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During January, 1201, there was
some loss of business but an improvement
during February. Comparing the first three
months of previous years it was found that
there had been a good growth in the busi-
neses.

On March 12, 1901, was made the
first air experience which was tried with
wax. On March 15 other experiments were
tried with hard metal and which met with
good success.

. The amount of business in April
was good and if continued throughout the
year, would equal 46% of the asctual capi-
tal stock. Only five or six machines were
running at this time but it wes figured, ex-
cept for the slump in January, that business
would be as good as 1900.

During May, 1901, Mr. H. H.
Franklin noticed the work which was being
done by John Wilkinson on automobiles.

~

_Business remained about the sanme
during this month. To July, 1901, or the
first half of the year, there was a slight
shrinkage over the previous year, the sales
having exceeded the expenses and purchases
by $3589.00 as against $5,000.00 for the

previous year.
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July 1, 1901, John Wilkinson
was employed by Alexander T. Brown and
He He Franklin to develop an aubtomobile.

Work in the Regular Department
eontinued about the same as during the
previous months.

In August, 1901, the shop shut
down one week for inventory. The sales
for the month exceeded the purchases and
expenses by about $1000.00.

Business in September, 1901,
was not as good, the sales running only
$700.00 over purchases and expenses. &
gimilar condition also existed through
October. '

On Oectober 28, 1901, at a
special meeting of the Stockholders, the
question of enlargement and entering the
automobile business was given consideration.
November 14, 1901, it was decided to go
into the automobile business, purchasing
from Brown & Franklin the automcbile busi-
ness which they had started. It was also
decided %o inecrease the capital stock from
$100,000.00 to $250,000.00.
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'On November 18, 1901, the auto-
mobile business, good-will thereof, efc.,
were purchased from Brown & Franklin, in-
eluding tools, equipment, leases, eto.,
which included space taken on the second
floor of building on the northwest corner
of Fayette & Geddes Sts., known as the
MeCOarthy Shirt factory. Additional space
was also taken on the floor above December
9, 1901.

About this time a model car,

which had been started by Mr. Wilkinson
‘upon entering the employ of Brown & )
. Frenklin was completed. This was the

first successful four eylinder air-cooled
engine built in the United States.

During the month of December,
1901, the casting business improved and
the automobile business went along in very
good shape. The automobile business, how-
ever, received a set back on December 21,
when there was a fire which destroyed a

considerable portion of the building which 3

they oacupied. Upon decision of the owners
not %o rebuilt the building, other arrange-
ments were found necessery. Another model
oar had been started and 10 stock cars,
besides a special car for Mr. A. T. Brown
were being huilt.

™

'
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During Jamuary, 1902, business
did not come in as well as in December;
still it was not what night be called
poor. The automobile business was pro-
gressing and towards the latter part of
the month picked up considerably. Several
orders had been received for automobiles
and with the progress of the business,
storage space for assenmbled autonmobiles
was found necessary. It was, therefore,
planned %to secure space in some nearby
building if possible.

Arrangenents were made with F. A.
Barton. who entered the Company's employ
February 1, 1902, as Assistant Hanager and
Purchasing Agent.

T

The ﬁnnualeOEtponad meeting of
the Stockholders was held February 12,
1902, at which time the same Directors and
officers as had held these positions during
the past year, were re-elected. At this
meeting Mr. Y. C. Lipe advised that on ac-
count of the nrowded condition it would
probably be necessary for the Lipe Estate
to request the H. H. Franklin Mfg. Co. to
move to other quarters. The President
and General HManager was thereby authorized
to purchase the Dohensy lot in South Geddes
st.
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The business for February, 1002,
nroved very satisfactory. Space was rented
in the Ryan building, corner of Geddes &
Fayette St., which was used for the storage
and assembling of automobiles. A spark
coil was also being mamufactured and market-
ed.

March, 1902, found the finances
of the Company in a healthy condition.
Sales for the month exceeded expensoes by
$2950.50, an increase over 1901, when sales
exceecded expenses $359.88. During this
month some additional stock was sold.

On Harch 8, the first 1902 model
car was completed, the engine of which was
in the front end of the car and placed
crossyise. It also had the stoering wheel
device. During the nmonth it was kept in
daily use and proved very satisfactory. A
lot of 10 cars was being made which it was
expected would be completed on Juns 1.

Brown & Franklin had purchased
the Doneney lot and it was proposed that
Robert Reidpath, Architect, Buffalo, N. Y.,
be recuested to prepare plans for the fac-
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There was a large increase of
business for April, 1902, over the previous
year.

Mr. A. T. Brown, H.H. Franklin
and V. ¢. Lipe, having been appointed a
Building Committee, entrusted the question
of plans, specifications, ete., to lr.
Reidpath.

The sales during May, 1902, were
more than for any month during 190l. Two
automobiles were sold out of the first lot
during this month, the lis%t price being
$1200. .

Brown & Franklin purchased the
Ryan house and lot, the idea being to put
a street through the Doheney lot and in-
crease the Geddes St. frontage. The fac-
tory was to be located directly back of
the Ryan lot, it being thought that -the
Ryan property would be available for an
office building.

The month of June, 1902, showed
up well in a business way, the profit of
the first six months being greater than
the entire year of 190l. During this
month the Saturday half-holiday was adopt-
ed, the employes being paid for the half
day providing no time had been lost or they
had not been late during the previous week.
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Two patents on the casting process

were allowed during June, 1902, giving the
Company a better control of the casting
business.

Satisfactory progress was made
in the Automobile Department, the first
lot of ten cars being completed. On June
19, 1902, the first regular stock car was
turned out and delivered to 8. G. Averell.
The second car was delivered soon after
to Sidney Shepard. Hr. Alexander T. Brown
also placed an order during this month for
one of the regular cars in addition to his
special touring car.

By this time there was an in-
crease in the stock subseription by
Messrs. A. J. DelMott, H. K. Chadwick,

H. H. Franklin and Dr. D. H. White.  The
plans and specifications for the new
building were about ready for bids, the
building %o be three s*ories and basenment,
52 ft. by 110 £t outside. Later on it was
decided to increase the size of the build-
ing, making it four stories and basement, -
the construction to be Lockwood Mill Con-
struction. The purchase of the Dohensy’
lot from Brown & Franklin was authorized.

) Businees contimied good through-
out July, 1902. The exhibit which had
been made at the Paris Exposition was also

exhibited at Buffalo and later at Charleston

and was later finally sent to the United
States National Museum at Washingten, D.C.
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On July 26, 1902, this Company
purchased from Brown & Franklin the
property known as 400 and 402 South
Geddes 8%t., this property having a front-
age of 148-1/2 ft. on South Geddes St.
by 264 ft. on Harbor Brook. They also
purchased at this time from Brown &
Franklin, property known as 316 South
Geddes St., having a frontage of 49-1/2
ft. on this street, extending back 100 f%.
No. 402 South Geddes St. had previously
besn purchased from kr. George Doheny by
Brown & Franklin, as was 316 South Geddes
S8t. which they purchased on April 25, 1902,
from Mary A.Ryan.

During July, 1902, work was begun
b; J. E. Lemey & Co., to whom the contract
had been let, on what is known as Building

“ A, it being that portion of building fac-

ing on Geddes St. and located South of the
driveway, being in size 110 x 52 f%., con-
gisting of four s*orles and basement. Work
had been completed on it to such an extent
that it was ready for occupancy January 4,
1903.

August, 1902, was a busy month.
Considerable machinery was added and two
automobiles were sold. Tork on the new
building was progressing and with pros-
pects of increased business it was decided
to increase the building started from three
to four stories. In the contract it was
specified that the building should be conm-
pleted on December 10 and every effort was
being made to bring this about.
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During the Month of August
arrangements were made with Mr. C. Arthur
Benjamin to enter the employ of the Conw-
pany as Sales llanager of the Antomobile
Department, to begin work on October 1,1902.

During August, 1903, suit was
brought against Claude A. Clark for in-
fringement. Also during this month Mr.
H. He Franklin assigned to the Company
patent dated June 10, -1902.

During September, 1902, busi-
ness was very lively. One automobile was

sold and the second lot of 10 started.

Work on the building was progressing in
good shape. Mr. H. H. Frenklin arranged
to take balance of stock under the Brown
& Fronklin transaction.

During October, 1902, the cast-
ing business was only fair, that of other
nonths continuing good. The third lot of
cars had been started. This was a lot of
25, making 45 in all. C. A. Benjanin
began work October 1. Dealers were secur-
ed for the State of Rhode Island and an
order Tor five cars secured. A dealer was
alao secured in Chicago, 25 cars being the
amount contiracted for. Arrangenents were
also begun to exhibit at the New York Auto~
mobile Show.
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The Hoverber business was also
good, both in the Casting and Automobile
Departments. The second lo} of 235 cars
wvas started, making altogether a total of
60 ordered built. Dealers were secured
in Pittsburg, Pa., Troy, N.Y., Albany,

N. Y., and Louisville, Ky.

In Decenmber, 1902, there was a
slight falling off in the casting business.
Dealers for acutomobiles were secured in
Boston and New York. Material was purchas-
ed for two lots of 25 cars each. Build-
ing G, known as the Case Hardening Roon
and located just west of Building A, being
a one story brick building in size 389 x
30 ft., was begun on December 4, 1202, and
gonpleted the same month.

On Jenuary 7, 1903, moving from
the premises then occupied to the new
building A was begun, although the build-
ing at this time was not entirely complet-
ed. On Jaruary 9 considerable new machin-
ery had been installed. Business in the
Regular Department was good. By the
latter part of the month the factory was
well established in the new building.

Dealers were secured in Denver,
Colo., Indianapolis, Ind., and Buffalo,
N. Y. A successful exhibit was made at
the Mew York Show, held January 17 to 24.
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The land owned by the Company
at this time had a frontage of 198 feet
on Geddes 8t. and extended back about
425 feet to Harbor Brook. The third
division of Building G, known as the Wash
Room, a one story brick building, 656 by
85 ft., located between and connecting
the Blaocksmith Shop, formerly known as
the Power Shop, was begun on January 20
and ocompleted March 1, 1903.

On February 6, 1903, began
running on our own power. On February
18, moved the foundry from the Lipe
‘estate to the new building. The shop
had been located in the old premises for

.~ four years, or since March, 1899. There

was a good business being done by the
Regular Department at this time, nine
machines being in operation. More stock
was being purchased. This was for the
gixth lot of 25 cars, making a total of
150 which it was hoped would be gotten
out during the season. Agents were
obtained in Philadelphia, Pa., and Cleve-
1811':1, QOhio,

In February, 1903, the Company
joined the Syracuse Metal Trades Asso-
olation amd also the National Association
of Mamufacturers. Also exhibited at the
Chicago Show.
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¢ On February 13, 1903, occurred
the Annual Stockholders Meeting, the
Directors elected being the same as during
the past year. The same officers were
also elected at the Directors lMeeting. The
Stocholders at this time were as follows,
considerable stock having been sold during
the past year:

HI‘- He K. Gh&dWick
Mrs. H. X. Chacdwick
Mrs. A. H. Chadwick
‘Mr. W. H. Warner
Mr. C. R. Franklin
Mr. H. W. Chapin
Hr. A. T. Brown

Mr. He H. Franklin
Mrs. Hs L. Franklin
Mr. W. C. Lipe

Mr. E. H. Dann

Mr. A. J. Delott
Mr. G. He Stilwell
Mrs. F. A. Barton
Browvn & Franklin
Mr. John Wilkinson
Hr. F. E. Cable

Dr. D. A. White

On March 5, 1903, the H. H. .
Franklin Mfg. Co. joined the Association
of Licensed Automobile Mamufacturers.
March-18, 1903, the Board of Directors
was increased from five to seven, Mr.

A. J. Dellott and J. Wilkinson being added.
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During March, April and May the
business was good, the excess sales over
purchases and expenses in the Regular
Department for the first five months being
nearly 100% over the same period of 1902.
At this time thore were 75 automobiles in
process and the sale of them was good.

The factory was turning out two automobiles
per day. 968 cars had been shipped to June
1, 19038, and it was intended to start 25
more in Juns. The work was started in June
on the 1904 nodel.

A strike was called by the
Machinists Union on April 8, 19203.

Business was thought to be sueh
at this time as warranted additional
buildings in order to make the factory
capacity sufficient for 1000 small cars
and 100 touring cars. '

Fourteen dealers had been
secured during the past three months.
The sales were increasing and it was
estimated that the requirements for the
coming season would be five to ten times
as large as during the present season.
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Arrangements for the erecting
of buildings were considered and Buildine
B was begun July 3, 1903, and completed
in December of the same year. This build-
ing io the Worth portion, including drive-
way, of the main building facing on Geddes
8t. and extending 137 ft. north of Build-
ing A, its size being 137 x 52 ft., four
gtories high and basement.

On July 25, 1903, this Company
purchased from Brown & TFranklin proyerty
commonly known as 314 South Geddes St.,
having a frontage thereon of 49-1/2 ft.
by 100 f. deep. This property had been
purchased shortly prior to this time by
Brown & Franklin from Cornelius and Hannah
Coughlin.

Then Building B was completed
it was planned that the offices should
ocoupy the north end of the first floor
of Building B, these ofPices %o be finish-
ed in oak and plaster and consist of one
large work office with a private and work-
ing office for the General Yanager and two
other private offices.

Business continued good but fell
off somewhat during August and September,
1908. It picked up again in October. In
September there were only five machinas
running in the Regular Devartment.
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The salss of automobiles held
up remarkably well; that is, there was a
good business late in the season. 1In
July 26 cars were shipped; in August, 18
and in October, 10. 7 or 8 cars were
on hand at the beginning of October, 6§
of which were sold during that month for
November delivery.

On September 23, 1903, work was
begun on addition to Building G proper
which is known as the Blacksmith Shop.

I+ is a one story brick building, 64 by

85 £4., located to the east of the Wash
Roem and directly adjoining on the west

the original Power House or Building G.

In size it is 64 by 35 ft., one story,
constructed of brick. Vork on this build-
ing was completed October 15, 1908.

Reviewing business of June,
July, August and September, 1903, the
following is found: Up to 1903 tnere had
been sold only 14 cars. In 1903 to
November 1, 181 cars were sold. During
this time membership in the A. L. AJlM.
had srown to 27 members. Only 13 had
made larger sales than this Company. The
total number of men on the motor-car pay-
roll was 171, the Regular Depariment, 34, ~
0ffice, 22, making a total of 227.
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The car for 1908 listed at
$1300.00 "In 1904 it was intended that
the line should consist of a two-passen-
xzer light runabout, listing at $1400; four-
passenger tonneau car, listing at $1850.00
nd a touring car listing at $52000.00. At

. this time the Company started making their

own bodies out of aluminum instead of wood.

November 1, 1903, the Company
had 25 dealers! ocontracts olosed for 1304.

Mr. G. H. 8tilwvell accepted an
offer to come with the Company Decenber 1,
1903.

Work had progressed to the point
where it was found possible, if necessary,
to deliver 40 automobiles. During the
month of December, 1903, an advertising
canmpaign was started which it was intended
would cost about $25,000.00.

260 Small cars were under way
and stock was being bought for 250 more.
Ten touring cars were also started during
the month of December. Considerable op-
position was found, it being believed that
the cars of 10 Horse Power could no%t be
properly air cooled. The 24 Horse Power
cars which it was at this time planned to
build, were, therefore, found to be a
great sensation.



113.

1l4.

1185,

118.

Throughout November and
December, 1903, business in the Regular
Department was dull.

On January 7, 1904, occurred
the 9th Annual Stockholders Meeting,
at which time the Directors of the previous
year were re-elected. This was also true
in the case of the officers who were re-
elacted at the Directors Meeting held on
the same day. At this meeting the capital
stoeck of the Company was increased from
$250,000 to $300,000.

During January, 1904, the cast-

- ing business was dull. The automobile

business, however, was good, 53 motor cars
being built and 49 shipped. There were
401 men on the pay roll not including the
office. During February, 1904, the
casting business was still dull: 70 auto=-
nobiles were built and 44 shipped. The
number of employes was increased from 401
to 434.

During Marech, 1904, there were
no special business changes, the number
of cars produced being 88. The nunber
on the Automobile Department pay roll was
482, Regular Department 26 and the offics
force 25, making a total of 543.



117. ' Up to the first of March, 1904,
contracts had been closed with 40 dealers
covering business for 1904. Business pro-
gressed well during the first quarter of
the year, this Company being fourth in
point of sales among the A. L. A. M.
members, those leading being the Cadillac,
Tinton, and 0lds in the order names. The
casting business also improved consider-
ably.

118. On April 9, 1904, Building L,
known as the Testing Shed, located in the
center of the main yard, was commenced,
and completed on April 19. In size this
building was originally one story high
60 x 112 ft.

119. On May 4, 1904, this Company
became one of the charter members of the
National Association of Automobile HManufac-
turers. It was during this year also that
it joined the National Association of
Hanufacturers of the ‘United States.

120. On May 29, 1904, Building F,
knovn as the Charging Station, which is
a one story building located near Harbor
Brook directly south of the Power House,
was started and was completed during Aug-
ust of the same year. This building is
140 ft. long by 60 ft{. wide.
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Business continued very good
throughout June. Up to the first of
July 568 1904 cars had been shipped and
629 manufactured. At this time there:
were 700 cars in process of construction,
these being runabouts and another lot of
20 touring cars.

July 1, 1904, showed an increase

‘in the number of dealers, there being at

that time 50 in various large cities of
the United States. Plans were being made
for the season of 19056 and it was about
decided that five models would be built.
Contracts for 1905 were being made and
orders for 3850 1905 cars had been placed
in the factory. A newspaper advertising

-campaign was in contemplation, this Com-

pary being the first to start a campaisn
of this kind.

The question of increassing the
size of the plant was given considera-
tion as it was expected that double the
business would be done during the coning
seascn. The plan proposed was to put up
a building 64 or 58 ft. by 150 or 160 ft.
long and five stories high, to be located
directly west of the north end of Build-
ing B.
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At the end of July the total of
1904 cars sold was 709. On the 1905 cars
it was planned to increase the horse-power
and thereby create a greater demand for
them. The 1906 product was being worked
on almost exclusively.

On July 18, 1904, work was begun
on the new buildings,the first one to be
started being Building ¢, which is located
west of the norith end of Building B and
consisting of four stories and basement,
80 by 180 ft. Tork was begun on this
building July 21, 1904, and completed in
December of the same year. The other
buildings decided on were a new Power
‘louse, which it was found necessary to
build on account of the increased power

“required, also a dry kiln in order that

lumber mizht be better cared Tor and more
thoroughly seasoned.

On August 1, 1904, Mr. L. L.
Thitmen, accompanied by Mr. C. S. Carris,
left 3an Franociseo for New York in a

.Franklin 10 H. P. runabout. The record

time between these two cities for an auto-
mobile was 81 days. ith the effort which
was then to be made it was hoped that this
record would be materially reduced. On
September 3, 1904, the car r eached New York
0ity, thereby reducing the record to 33
days, 23 hours and 20 minutes.



1237, This performance was looked
upon by everyone as being most wonderful,
especially so in visew of the fact that
an air cooled machine was the one to
accomplish it.

128. Business increased and develop-
ed very rapidly. In September, 1904,
Building D, known as the Power House,
which is 72 ft. 10 in., by 46 ft., located
near Harbor Brook, was started and com-
pleted in December of the same year. It
is a brick, steel ftruss building having
a gabled roof.

129. On October 5, 1904, this Company
purchased from James Doheny and Amelia -
Doheny, his wife, property known as 127

~-West Marcellus St., this proverty having
a frontage therson of 42 ft. by 92 ft.
deep. On October 31, 1904, this Company
purchased from Herbert H. Franklin proper-
ty having 275.19 ft. frontage on Vest
Marcellus St., next to Harbor Brook.
This property had a depnth of 247.4 feet
and was previously purchased by Mr.
Franklin from the Henry Gifford estate.

129a. November 7, 1904, Mr. H. H.
Franklin was made_Treasurer of the A.L.A.M.

130, Throughout the Fall and early
- Winter of this year business and prospects
continued to grow brighter and the season

of 1905 had every evidence of being far
in advance of that of any previous years.
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During February, 1905, the Dry
Kiln, known as Building E, which is con-
structed on a conerete foundation, having
18" walls and located directly wesi of
the Power House, was started. In size it
is 34 x 20 ft. Tork was completed there-
on in December of the same year.

During the winter of 1904~ 5
the first commereial truck was built.

o On January 25, 1905, occurred
the Annual Stockholders and Direckors
Meetings. At these meetings were elect-
ed the same Directors and 0fficers as had

peld 0ffice during the past year.

" During January the Jompany joined
the United States Trade Mark Association.

Also during the Month of January,
1905, the first standard 1905 tonneau car
wag turned out. This car had a tilting
front seat which it was necessary to raise
before passengers could. enter the tonneau.
The first Franklin delivery car was started
during this month, it being so built as %o
utilize the regular 12 H. P. motor.



138. The average output during January
was 9 cars per day. During Janmuary and Feb-
ruary, or up until March lst, the total ship-
ments amounted to 471 cars as compared with
270 the year before. The process of secur-
ing Franklin dealers had been a very rapid
one and up to March lst 80 dealers had been
secured. On this date there were 1184 men on
the pay roll as against 488 of the year before.
Business had nearly doubled and the Franklin
Company were still holding fourth place in
sales with A. L. A. M. members.

136-1/2. During March, 1905, the railroad
switch was completed.

137, - On April 15, 1905, property known
as 107 and 109 West Marcellus 8t. was purchas-
ed from Caroline Murphy. This property had a
frontage of 49-1/2 f£t. by 97 ft. deep. On
Harch 17, 1905, the Company purchased from
Edward Kennedy and Sarah Kennedy, his wife,
property known as 412 South Geddes St., having
a frontage of 47 ft. by 56 £4.10 in. in the
rear by 100 ft. deep. On April 268, 1905, this
Company purchased from Bryan 0'Donnelland Hary
0'Donnell, his wife, property known as 105
Weet Marcellus 8t., this having a frontege of
36 ft. by 42 ft. deep.

138, On May 1, 1905, the Company purchas-
ed from Thos. C. and Anna Dalton, property at
310 South Geddes 8t., this having a frontage
of 72 ft. on West Marcellus St., south side,
by 62 ft. frontage on the west side of South
Geddes St. :
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On May 17 the total shipments

- amounted to 678 cars as apgainst 896 of

the »revious year. Orders had come in so
rapidly that they were now 192 cars behind
the orders, the total number of cars con-
tracted for being 1499. The number of
men in the factory was 1273. The casting
business as well continued good and there
was a steady increase in the Automobile
Department.

On July 13, 1905, the Company
purchased from Eliza J. Ford, property
known as 113 West Marcellus St., this
property having a frontage of 49-1/2 ft.

on the south side of West “arﬂellus St.,
by '100 ft. deep.

On July 31, 1905, this Company
purchased from Agnes Christoffel, property
known as 213 Magnolia 8t., having a front-
age on the east side of Magnolia St., ex-
tending back to Harbor Brook.

Up to August, 1905, 1012 cars
had been shipped. The output for July
was 221 cars, of which 183 were shipped.
The total number of dealers was 92.
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The case of the New York Auto-
mobile Company vs. Messrs. A. T. Brown,
John Wilkinson and H. He Franklin was
tried during July, 1906, decision being
reserved until Fall.

During this month the Company
joined the Smith Premier-Franklin Athletic
Association.

The first six months of 1905
the Company held 5th place in the A. L.
A. M.

Models for 1906 were decided
on in July.

Up to August 1, 1905, 200 1906
ears had been contracted for. At this
time the Conpany was represented in near-
ly every city in the United States having
over 200,000 inhabitants. Business con-
tinued good in the Casting Department
during this time, as well as in the Auto-
mobile Department.
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On August 25, 1905, the Company
purchased from the Jacob Crouse estate
property as follows: 216 feet along
the south line of West Marcellus St., by
205 feet deep, excepting and reserving -
for a publie highway a strip of such land
60 ft. wide on the west bank of Harbor
Brook and extending at right angles from
Teat Marcellus 8t.

Laboratory work was first begun
in September, 1905, when a mechanical lab-
oratory was established.

Up to October 1, 1905, there
had been 1089 cars shipped and there were

1606 cars on contrect for 1908 models.

The factory payroll contained 900 names.

On September, 1905, the Conmpany
also purchased property commonly known as
616 Gifford 8t., from Bridget 0'Brien,

. this property having a frontage of 24-1/2

Pt. by 160 feet deep.

September 27, 1905, the Company
also purchased property known as 714
Gifford 8t., having a frontage of 26-1/3
ft. on the north side of Gifford St. by
160 f£%. dﬁﬁpo
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During October and Novenmber,
1905, the Casting Department ran at its
full cepacity. 29 1908 cars were shipped
up to November 1. 1085 men were on the
pay roll and 59 Dealer's COontracts for
1906 cars had been closed.

October 6, 1905, property known
as 722 Gifford St., was purchased from
Anmy B. Lyons, this property having a front-
age of B0 ft. on the north side of Gifford
3t. just east of Harbor Brook, and a depth
of 160 ft. extending back to the land of
the H. H. Frﬂ.nklin Mfgh Co.

_ During October, 1905, this Com-
pany joined the Association Patents Co.,
they being Associate Members thereof.

Business continued good through-
out the year of 1905-in both the Regular
and Automobile Departments. Up to Dec-
ember 9 77 1906 cars had been shipped.

December 9, 1905, decision in
favor of Messrs. A. T. Brown, J. Wilkinson
snd H. H. Franklin in the matter of the
New York Automobile Co. vs. the foregoing,
was allowed by Judge Andrews.



158. On November 5, 1905, Building
I, a one story wooden building, located
direetly south of BuildingsF and G, fac-
ing on Gifford St., was started, this
building being completed on December 1
of the same year. In size it is 30 by
100 ft.

159. Building H, known as a lumber
shed, and located directly west of Harbor
Brook, was begun on December 1, 1905,
and completed on December 10 of the same
year. This is a wooden building 40 x 20
f£t.

160. At a meeting of the directors-

.. held December 20, 1905, it was voted %o
subseribe $5000 for stock in the Sweet

% Artisian School, this school being start-
ed to train and develop young men in the
mechanical arts, the idea being that this
gschool would help solve the problem of
securing competent skilled workmen.

18l. The same Officers and Directors
were re-elected for 1906 at the postponed
nth  Annual Stockholders Meeting held January
311 i .
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The judgment of the Company va.
the Lamson & Goodnow Mfg. Co., Sherburne
Falls, Mass., was affirmed by the liass-
achusetts Appellate Court, early in 1908.
This suit was started in June, 1898, and
covered peynment of castings amounting to
$1291.10.

It was during the Spring of 1908
that rhysical and chemical laboratories
were established for experiments and tests
of various kinds.

In December, 1905, 77 and during
Fanuary, 1906, 109 1908 cars were shipped.
At the end of January 79 dealer's contracts

.were closed covering 1543 automobiles, and

at the close of March there were 90 dealers
contracting for 1642 motor cars as against
79 dealers and 1494 cars the same date the
vear before.

At the close of March, 1906,
there were 1284 factory employees and the
sales of the Company gave them third
position in the A. L. A. M.

About this time a franchise was
secured for a second railroad switch to
cross Marcellus 8t. and enter the yard.
This switch was constructed and cars began
running over it in April, 1906.
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Dietz Lantern Works Bldg. was
leased April 10, 1206, and used as a

storehiocuse.

The Regular Depariment was in a
most healthy condition, the net income
for the first four months of the year,
19068, being more than double that of the
same period the previous year. All the
die makers were employed and some dies were
being made outside. All the casting
machines were in operation.

March 23, 1906, the referee gﬁva
his decision in the action of the Company

~against the Follett Mfg. Co., awarding a

judgment in favor of the H. H. Franklin
Mfg. Co., including back interest and one
bill of costs.

April 18, 1906, in behalf of
the Cormittee of Award of the St. Louis
Exposition, Mr. Wilkinson, the designer
of the Franklin car, was presented with
a framed certificate of merit.

In April, 1906, the Department
Heads Society of the H. H. Franklin lifg.
Go. was formed consisting of heads of
departments, general foreman and their
immediate assistants, the object being to
promote better acquaintance and greater
harmony. This Society held periodical
meetings during the year.



172. On Illay 5, 1906, among 65 con-
petitors in a Two-gallon Efficieney Con-
test of the Automobile Club of Ameriea, a
Franklin car took first prize, a $500
punch bowl. This was a four cylinder
Franklin stock car. Carrying two people
it went 87 miles on two gallons of gasoline
and in a corroborative test went 95 miles
on two gallons.

173. Ag early as May, 1908, the 1907
mociels were well developed and plans were
being shaped for 1908.

174, ' The selling organization for

1908 was especially successful. Among the

~ problems coped with was that of selling a
considerable number of D cars which were
late in coming out from the factory. This
gituation was ably met and on June 20 there
were but 59 Ds to dispose of in connection
with 15 Gs. These were all sold before
the 1907 models were ready to be marketed.

175. - On June 25, 1206, the Franklin
Automobile Company was formed, the home
office being in connection with the H. H.
Franklin Mfg. Co. It is a co-partnership
consisting of H. H. Franklin, G. H. Stilwell
and John Wilkinson. :
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The first annual Salesman's
fonference was held in August, 1908. Tor
three weeks all the traveling salesmen were
at the factory where they received a thor-
ough training on the Franklin car, learn-
ing by practical methods its general prin-
ciples, its construction, how to operate
it, etc. They were also ftrained on how %o
put their agency proposition before 2
dealer, and, in fact, were given instruc-
tion in all lines necessary to nake then
first class Franklin salesmen.

In August, 1906, starting on the
ond, a Franklin six cylinder left San
Francisco for New York to make a new trans-
continental record. The Franklin already

held :the record of 32 days 23 hours 20

nimtes. Tith a loss of ten hours by
floods, 12 by quicksands, 12 by the police
and 32 by breakage caused by running off

a high embankment, the car arrived in New
York in 15 days, 2 hours, l2 minutes, there-
by cutting its owm record in two.

- Immediately after this six-
oylinder San Francisco-New York run, a
Buick ocar attempted o lower the new
record by a run from New York to San
Trancisco. The Buick crossed the conti-
nent in about 25 days.
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Following the San Francisco run,
the same Franklin car lowered the Chicago-
New York record by 1 hr. 45 min. The
record now stood 56 hours 58 min.

Qctober 15, 1906, branches of
the Franklin Automobile Company were
opened at 671 Boylston St., Boston, and
1218 Michigan Ave., Chicago, and later,
January 380, 1907, moved to permanent
quarters, 1450 Michigan Ave., Chicago.

A repair shop was opened November 1, 1908,
in connection with the Boston Branch at
61-63 Wareham St. The payment of the rents
at both these branches was guaranteed by
the H. H. Franklin Mfg. Co.

On October 27, 1906, the proper-
ty commonly knowvn as 117 West Marcellus
3t., was purchased fron Jas. J. Fay and
Ellen Fay, his wife, this property having
a frontage of 83 feet on the South side
of West Marcellus 8t. and 500 feet deep.

; The directors voted November 21,
1906, to pay Mr. H. H. Franklin the actual
costs $0 him of his English, French, and
German casting patents and have them trans-
ferred to the Company.
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December 19, 1906, A. J. DeMott
and H. K. Chadwick resigned as directors,
and He X. Chadwick as Seoretary of the
Company. BR. He Dann and F. A. Barton were
elected as directors to fill the vacancies,
and F. A. Barton was elected Secretary
for the balance of the year.

Business was excellent in Casting
Depgrtment throughout the year of 19C6.

November 1, 19086, contracts for
over 1500 1907 cars had been approved,
with contracts in not yet approved cover-
ing several hundred mors. 286 1907 cars

_ had been shipped.

Factory and 0ffice were now
badly over-crowded and with the. anticipat-
ed increase in output for 1907 it became
essential that extensions %o the plant be
made. Plans were therefore drawn up and
approved and during the summer and fall
the following buildings and additions were
constructed:

Building M. is a westerly
addition to Building ¢ and is 4 stories
high with basement. It is 62 ft. wide
by 104 f£%. long and in construction is
of re-inforced concrete and brick. Work
was begun on July 16, 1906, and completed
November 22 of the same year.
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Building J is that building known
as Shipping Room and is located directly
west of Harbor Brook and faces on Yest
Marcellus &t. In size it is 70 x 60 f£%.
and is a one story wooden building. York
was begun in August, 1908, and finished
Novenmber 1, 190€.

Building K is a one story wooden
building located west of the Shipping Roonm
anc. commonly known as the Sawmill., This
building is 84 x 80 ft., and was begun
October 13, 1906, and completsd December
1, 19086.

Building 0 is located directly
gouth of Building A and southeast of east
end of Building G, is a small building
756 x 12 f5. and known as the Scrap Sheds.
Work was begun on this building December
14, 1906, and completed December 27 of
same vear.

Building N is known as the Mill-
wright Shed and is a one story wooden
building facing on Marcellus S5t., and
located north of Building C. In size
it is 84 x 35 f{. TVork was begun on this
building December 14, 1906, and completed
January 2, 1907.
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These extensions relieved the
congestions in the factery and office
by giving space for the Purchasing Depart-
ment 0ffices on the first floor of Build-
ing C. The Sundry Department then took
the 0ffiece thus vacated, which in addition
to the space formerly occupied gave them
ample room.

_ The Advertising Department was
also given office room amcross the hall
from the new Purchasing Depariment offices.
The Shipping Room was moved to the new
building erected for that purpose. The
screw, milling and other heavy machinery
were moved to the basement of Buildings
C and M. :

The Tool Room was moved to the

~second floor, the Sundry Stock Room to the

third, and the Paint Shop extension %o

the fourth floor of Building M, the wester-
ly addition to Building C. Other changes
and shifts wers made throughout the factory
and the increased space enabled the manu-
facturing work to proceed more rapidly and
advantageously.

December 1, 1308, an electrical
laboratory was established. The laboratory
was now composed of the following sub-
divisions: mechanical, physical, chemical
and electrical.
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196. At the Stockholders Annual
Meeting held Jamuary 23, 1907, Mr. H. H,
Franklin was elected president to succeed
Mr. A. T. Brown, Mr. Brown having been
President contimiously since July 12, 1898.
The officers elected werse:

H. H. Pranklin, President
G He 8tilwell, Vice =President
J. A, Barton, BSecretary
H. B. Yebb, Treasurers.

19%. Mr. G. H. Stil‘i’?ﬂll anc Mr. John
' Wilkinson were made members of the Execu-
tive Committee to act with the President
for the ensuing year as an advisory com-
mittee. The directors elected at %this
time were:

He H. Franklin,
E. H. Dann,

John Wilkinson,
G. H. Stilwell,
A. T. Brown,

W. C. Lipe,

Frank A. Barton.

198. Wright Bros. Bldg. on Willow
S8t. was leased February 1, 1907, for a
storehouse.

199. Up to February 1, 1907, 455 1907

cars had been shipped and 700 unfilled
shipping specifications were in hand.
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Specifications for 1908 models were
well under way and nearing corpletion before
February 1, 1907, and the pattern and tool
work wers in process.

In March, 1907, some of the 1908
econiracts for materials had lPeen placed and

. shipments were beginning to come in.

The 0ffice vault was completely
equipped with new furnishings during Marech,
1907, which facilitated the filing and safe
keeping of correspondence, cocuments, etc.

An industrial railway three-quarters
of a mile long was installed during the early
months of 1907, running through the factory
and yard. This was used for transportation
from one part of the plant to another and was
a great saving both in time and labor.

Business in the Regular Department
was good during the Spring of 1907 but not
in the healthy condition desired. Competi-
tion from other die cast concerns through-
out the country began to be felt as the
quality of their work had been improving
until in appearance ot least it was pimilar
to that of this Company. However, the
treasurer's report for this department
showed up well.



20b.

206,

207,

208,

200,

1t was deternined tc make an
average of seven autoriobiles each working
day from May 1, 1907, and in order to
acoomplish this the question of factory
extension was under discussion early in
the year. The pay roll at this tinme was
about $20,000.00 per weeke The names of
1650 workmen were on the books.

The Sundry and Repair Deparinent
sales inereased during the first six months
of the 1907 fiscal year nearly 80% over the
previous year.

During the first quarter of 1907

" the Company tock second position in volume

of business in the A. L. A. H.

In March, 1907, a Red Cross First
Aid Room was opensd in the factory. Here

Pirat treatment was given all kinds of

accidents, and between then and the end of
the year 1884 cases had been freated, none
of the accidents being more serious than
loss of fingeras.

The Traffic Department was
inaugurated in April, 1907, to handle
systematically the traffic inbound and
outbound.



210.

2ll.

212.

213.

2l4.

The case on appeal of the New
York Automobile Company from judgment
rendered against it by Judge Andrews Dec-
ember 9, 1905, was served June 8, 1907.

On June 13, 1907, the property
at 231 Magnolia 8t., was purchased fronm
Peter and Mary Brang, this property having
a frontage of 50 feet on the east side of
Magnolia 8t., extending for the same width
to the west bank of Harbor Brook.

Following the usual custonm of

‘the Company the Saturday half-holidays

were given the employees from June 1 to

- Beptember 1, 18907. Vacations of one and

in certain instances two weeks were grant-
ed the heads of departments and office em-
ployes. :

On June 123, 1907, the directors
voted to make extension running north from
Building B to Marcellus 8t. Ground was
broken on June 17 and after the usual de-~
lays work progressed. The Executive Com-
mittee was made the Building Commitiee and
to have ocharge of the work of construction.

June l4, 1907, the Company joined
The Anmerican Society for Testing Materials.



215, On June 19, 1907, 1362 auto-
" moblles had been shipred and specifica-
tions were in for 165, nine more than
were to be built by the factory,

21a8. 3ixty Bosion ivy vines were
planted in the yard and at the pilasters
of the main buildings. Two years previous
the front lawn had been beautifised with a
nunber of bushes and shrubbery artistically
arranged. These had now grown to objeects
of beauty. The lawn was well cared for,
and altogether the outside apnearance of
the factory was very attractive.

al%. A commercial truck on which ex-

s ddD periments had been in process since 1904
was marketed during the 1907 selling season.
The experimental trucks had been in gen-
eral use by the fastory for two years or ~
more and nad proved most efficient and N
econonical. These commercial cars were
being built in 1000, 2000 and 3000 lb, L
eapacity. Axpe“imants on still larger
ones8 were in progass,

als. - lHere than a little trouble was
axperienced in securing transmissions for
the Model D automobile throughout the early
part of 1907, which delayed shipments and
resulted in the loss of many sales. Up to
June 300 cancellations had been received

™ which undoubtedly would have been held by

| early deliveries, However, all the Ds had

been disposed of by July and a considerabls

number of orders had been refused for this

modsl,
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220.

221,

The summer months of 1907 were

. prosparous in the casting depariment. For

the first time in its history a traveling
man who wes to devote all his energies to
soliciting business for this department

was added to the force. He made his first
trip July 13. At this time there were
geven salesmen on the road in the interesis
of the automobile, %wo of whom had H demon-
strators and drivers. There wera also
several mechanics out, continuing the
rolicy of looking closely after owners and
having the factorv!s expert inapect the
current year's motor-cars ai least once
during the season.

The seoond annual Salesnan's

-conference was held August 1, 1807.

Lectures were given by the heads of all
departments. Discussions were held.
Franklin %alking points and Franklin
efficiency were brought to their attention
and practical instruction was given ia the
care, operation and consjruction of the
Franklin automobile. :

The third annual Field Day
between the employees of the H. H. Franklin
Mifg. Co., and the Smith Premier Typewriter
Co., was hold at Long Branch August 10,1807.
The Franklin boys won every point except
the bowling. This was the third year the
Franklins had won the oup and it thus be-
came their permanently.



222

223.

224,

225.

The Syracuse Bioycle Company
plant was taken on a two year lease in
August, 1908, and was being used for

storage and paint shop.

The trade mark "FRANKLIN" in
the form used by the Company was register-
ed by the Patent 0ffice August 20, 1907.

- August 21 and 33, 1907, a
Pranklin 20 h. p. D made a record run
from Chicago to New York in 39 hours, 53
minutes. The former record was held by
a Franklin, the run having been made in
1906in 66 hours, 58 minutes.

The 1908 announcement was out
shortly after the middle of August and
great interest was shown by the trade.

The principles of the four-cylinder air-
gooled engine of the first Franklin motor-
car marketed in 1902 were still adhered
to. The first engine developed seven
horse-power while in 1908, due to being

. refined and perfected, it developed 18 h.

p. in the G, 238 in the D and $he six-
eylinder in the Model H developed 42
He De



226, September 1, 1907, the New York
Branch of the Franklin Automobile Company
was opened at Broadway, Amsterdam Ave.,

& 73rd 8te., with repair shop at 311 7. 87th
St., the rents being guaranteed by this
Company.

227 Stcckholders were receiving
regularly querterly dividends and the sur-
plus account of the Company was steadily
increasing.

228, On October 17, 1907, the proper-
ty at 721 Gifford St., was purchased from
William T. Powers, this property being on
the north side of Gifford St., bounded on
the west side by Lot #9, on the east Ly
the west bank of Harbor Brook and running
back to the south line of farm lot #3262,
together with all the interest of the
perty of the first part inend to Harbor
Brook. :

229, A great amount of laboratory
work was done during 1907. The equipment
was sufficient to determine the value of
practically all the materials used, and
it was frankly admiited by steel makers
ag woll as by all competitors in the aute~-
mobile business that the Engineering Depart-
ment of the H. H. Franklin Mfp. Co. stood
practically at the top and that it had ex-
erted a far-reaching influence upon the
development of automobile materials, more
especially steel, Extensive new equipment
was installed in the laboratery during 1907.
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231.

232.

233.

In September and October, 1907,

the Casting Depariment was running with

full force and there were a large number

of castings on order. In the motor-car
department contracts had been olosed cover-
ing about 2000 1908 automobiles and shipping
specifications were coming in in unusual
munbers. The factory was over four times
ghead of the same period the previous year.
The first 1908 model was shipped September
10, 1907,

Dealers were never more anxious
to handle the Franklin line than at this
time and if an agency in a good town was
to be ohanged, there was a scramble to
gt it.

The weekly pay-roll was nearly
$20,000. :

About November 1, 1907, a finan-
cial panic became general throughout the
country and nearly all customers in both
casting and automobile departments request-
od a hold-up in shipments. Very few can-
cellations werse received, but shipments
were suspended indefinitely. After a
time it became necessary to retrenoh and
the workmen were reduced in mumber from



234. Operations on the extension
of Building B, designated as Building P,
were temporarily shut off. TWork was given
to as many men as possible by shifting the
force every few days. The financial panic
itself soon subsided but all business
interests continued to feel the depression
and the automobile industry was not exempt.

2236, In the Franklin automobile, how-
ever, there was a combination not found in
any other, at least not to the same degree.
This combination was that of medium price,
medium weight, and medium size. In addi-
tion was the combination of high power,
maximim strength and minimum operating
expense. That an automobile having these
features is the most stanle was evidenced
by the fact that in the few years the
Franklin Company had been in business they
had passed nearly all competitors.

J386. The Franklin motor-car therefore
held its popularity throughout the panie
and while during that period very few orders
were placed and those largely for future
gshipments and such orders as were in at
that time were held in abeyance, still as
soon as the money merket began to clear
orders were released, additional ones were
gent in and the company was assured that
the depression, at least so far as Franklin
cars were concerned, was only temporary.



237.

238 L}

239

240,

The casting department also had
very much the same experience. Shipment
was suspended on some 300,000 castings and
for a considerable length of time very few
orders were received. Recovery from this
condition, however began after only a few
weeks. Business was not very brisk for
gome time after but order began to be re-
ceived and the increase was gradual but
steady.

January 1, 1908, five dies were
in process and five oasting machines were
running on half time. The treasurer's

- report of the casting Department for Jan-

uary showed the operating expenses exceed-
ing the sales.

820 1908 automobiles had been
shipped up to January 1, as compared with
199 the previous year. 126 shipping orders
were on hand.

i3

Jaruary 22, 1908, at the amnual
meeting the directors and officers of the
preceding year were re-elected.



241, January 29, and 30, 1908, the
Company held a very successful automobile
show in the Alhambra. This was kept open
day and evening and 15414 persons were in
attendancs. All stages of the manufacture
were exhibited, as well as ten types of
1908 Franklin motor-cars. A set of his-
torical engines showed the development
from the first type built by John ¥ilkin-
gon in 1902 up to the present four and
six eylinder motors,

242, The number of workmen was ilncreas-
od after the first of February, 1908, and
in April had reached 900.

243, The total number of Franklin ocars
built and sold each year up tc this time
was as follows: '

1902 Hodels-- 11
1908 M 184
1904 ® 713
19056 M 1109 :
1906 M 1288
1907 v 1508
" 1908 v 1150 (approximately)

POTALmmmmmmmm= 5961



244, The steady increase in the busi-
- of the H., H. Pranklin Mfg., Co., and the
uninterrupted improvement in the produet
was due to the efficisnoy of the organiza-
tion. The development and improvement in
the organizetion was as marked as the
improvement in the business itself.

245, By organization is meant the
entire force. The stockholders come
first, then the Board of Directors, then
the officers, then the general organiza-
tion.

2486, The President was also the Manager,
He was responsible to the Board of Directors
and the Board of Directors to the stock-
holders. The general organization was made
up of departments, each department with a
head. The head of the department was in
full charge of his department .and he was
held responsible for its development,
efficiency, expense and whatever profit
or loss it might exert upon the business.

247, The policy of this Company which
is also the polioy of the Licensed Associa-
tion had been lived up to since the selling
of the first Franklin automobile, in that a
deposit was required when order was placed
in case of an individual and on entire
number of cars contracted for by a dealer
at time of signing contract. . Automobiles

were then shipped with cash payment in
advance or sight draft against bill of lading.



248, It has been the policy of this
Company since its beginning to send out
mechanics to each owner of a current year
motor-car and have such car inspected at
least once during the season. This
mechanio, who is always an expert on
Franklin cars, adjusts and repairs the
cars in cases where local repair men are
unable to locate the trouble, and instructs
dealers and car owners in reference to
their care, maintenance and operation.

249, This is one of the features of
the Franklin policy which has won its
guccess. The company under this plan

- has always been able to follow its oars
after they left the factory and overcome
any diffioculty caused by inexperienced
drivers. They have, therefore, kept
their owners satisfied and in line to
purchase a new Franklin the next year.

250, The lease of Wright Bros.
Bldg. expired February 1, 1908, and
was not renewed.

251, 417 1908 automobiles had been
shipped up to February 8, 1908, and 418
the same date the previous year.
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Early in the fall of 1907 the
Sundry, Sales and Advertising Departments
were combined into the Selling Division
with one man in charge of this part of the
business. He also was assistant to the
Manager. On his resignation about April
1, 1908, the old regime of having the
three departments distinet was again adopt-
ed. '

Extensive tests along the line
of the alcohol motor were being made.
These dated back to the summer of 1907
when a regular aleohol motor was buils

-and oompleted in December. A second

one was completed in April, 1908. The

.. results obtained were quite satiafactory.

The land owned by the Company,
including that immediately surrounding
the factory yard, now amounted to six
acres. '

The various factory buildings
were now made up of the following, ocon-
prising 225,085 sq. ft.
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287,

258.

The 0ffice space had not heen
enlarged but provision for the increase
in numbers and additions of new depart-
ments was made from time to time. All
Hanufacturing Department 0ffices and
factory clerks were located in the fac-
tory proper; the Traffiec Department
0ffices were in the Shipping Room Bldg.,
the Advertising Department girls were
put in the garage and later moved to the
first floor of a cottage on West Marcellus
3t., and still later the entire Advertis-

- ing Department was located here; the

Franklin Automobile Company 0ffices were
on the second floor of this same cottage; .
and the Regular Department 0ffice employes
ogcupled a part of the Purchasing Depart-
ment 0ffices.

A fire depariment had been in
existence in connection with the factory
since 19038 and in the spring of 1908 it
was entirely re-organized and perfected.

Drills were held. each week and
occasionally a drill master from the
Syracuse Fire Department gave instructions.
den in the factory were appointed for each
station and were so trained that each knew
his particular duty when the alarm was
sounded. The equipment consisted of rope,
hose, fire extinguishers, pails, tools,
and water pumps scattered throughout the
buildings. An inspection of the fire
pails and hydrants was made each week.
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The Franklin Mutual Benefit Society was
organized in the early part of 1908. In Hareh,
1908, it had 2376 members. The Constitution re-
quires that each member vay a fee of $.50 per

month until such time as there be $4,000 in the

treasury, when the dues shall be reduced to
$t251

A Commercial Car Department was created
April 4, 1908, for the purpose of developing this
line of motor cars.

April 6, 1908, the Adding Machine De-
partment was established, with Mr. F. A. Barton
in charge, for the purpose of getting the adding
machine ready to put on the market and to obtain

‘such patents, etc., as might bes found necessary.

Experiments were begun on the adding
machine in 1902. In 1903, however, all work
was discontinued, but resumed again the latter
part of 1904. Since that time the greater wortion
of one man's time has been spent on this work.

One disftinctive feature of this machine
is that it has but ten numeral keys, whereas any
other machine on the market has one hundred or
more. '

During April, 212, and in May 180
gpecifications for motor cars were received, a
larger number than during any other mantns in
the company's history.
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265.

266.

_R67.

May 1, 1908, a printing plant was
established for the purpose of taking care of
a large part of our printing. This plant was
started in a small way with but one man employed.

On Mey 19, 1908, wae made public
the fact that the engineers of the H. H.
Tranklin Mfg. Co. had so far perfected an
alcohol motor that it was, size for size,
as powerful as a gasoline motor, and as
economical to use with both gasoline and
alcohol at the same price per galloen.

In May, 1908, there were 12 dies

in process in the Regular Depariment and 20

not started, part of the die work being done

outside. Five casting machines were in

oneration full time. This shows the Die
Department to be in much better condition
than a year before, but the Casting Depart-
ment to be operating but five machines
against nine the year before. '

Following the usual custom‘the
half-helidays for.both office and faoctory
were begun June 1, 1908.

June 1, 1908 was the first time in
the history of the business that we failed
to show an inersase in business over the
preceding year. In 1907 the sales for the
first five months amounted to $2,262,000 and
in 1908 the sales for the first five months
amounted to $1,321,000. TFor the balance of



1908 our sales exceeded those of 1907 by $230,000.

__Aes. dJune 4, 1908, the dealers were
fee 2573 notified that orders for 28 h. p. Model
D with alecohol motors would be accented.

269, The pay-roll of June 6, 1908,
amounted to $15666.71 covering 1172 emploves.
The corresponding week in 1907 the pay-roll
was. $17682.86, covering 1306 employes.

870, - Up to June 6, 1908, 927 1908
cars had been shipped as comparsed with
1348 the previous year. There were,
‘however, 243 motor-cars on back order--
more than were to be built by the fac-
torv.

_71. The number of Franklin dealers
had increased each year. June 13, 1908,
there were 143 dealers, 53 of whon sold
the Franklin line exclusively. In 1907
there were 116 dealers, 1906 101, in
1905 95, in 1904 57 and in 1903 22.

872, The Special Stock Devartment was
established June 15, 1908, for the purpose
of keeping at a minimum the surplus and ob-
golete stock in the factory.



273.

274.

8YE.

276,

277

Work on the.office extension in
Building P, which had been suspended in Novem-
ber, 1907, was resumed July 13, 1908.

July 11, 1908, there were 147
Franklin dealers, the largest number
reached during the year.

There were at this time Franklin
dealers in 75% of the cities of the United

‘States over 25,000 population, a more wide-

spread representation than ever before.

The Third Annual Salesmen's
Conference was held July 20 to 23. Talks
were given by department managers covering

.all phases of the automobile industry, in-

cluding an explanation of the Franklin
policy.

The 1909 prices of motor-cars were
slightly less than those of 1908 on certain
models. For instance, the Model H touring
car in 1908 was listed at $4,000 while in
1909 it was listed at $3,750; the Model D
touring car was listed at $2,860 and in 1909
at $2,800; the Model G price remained the
same in 1909 as in 1908.

Mr. H. H. Franklin resigned from the
pogition as treasurer of the Association of
Licensed Automobile Manufacturers, the same
taking effect August 15, 1908;

I IR 0 R S T . Sy
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August 23, 1908, five casting
machines were running in the Die-Casting
Departmnent, 12 dies in oweration and 8
not begun. 1908 business nearly cleaned
up in August of that year.

First 1909 shivment was in
September, 1908.

The net profit for the fiseal
year ending September 1, 1908, was somewhat
less than for the preceding year, a result
of the financial panic due to the decreased
production for three or four months at that
time and consequent increased overhead ex-
penses.

The closing of the plant at noon
on Saturdays in September was extended in-
definitely, it being found that the factory
on 656 hour time was keeping up with former
records on 69 hour time. Such portions of
the factory as were back on their work were
required to keep running but as a rule but

a small part of the factory was kent open.

Improvements in methods and
cnanges in design and material have made a
reduction in the costs. For instance, the
1909 Model D cost $200.00 less than the 1908
corresponding model and yet was better made
than ever before.



283. However, throughout the year of 1908
the stockholders received the usual dividends,
an evidence that the panic did not at any time
materially affect the financial soundness of

the Company.

284, Catalog inquiries rsceived during
1908 averaged 577 per month as against an
average of 407 during 190%7.

286. The gross sales for the fiscal
years ending September 1, 1907, and 1908,
were as follows:

Year ending Sept. 1, 1907 $3,398,850
woom "1, 1908 2,761,962

Decrease nearly 19% $ 636,888

286, At the close of 1908 the Die-
) Casting Department resorted having received
orders for 132 new dies as compared with 78
in 190%.

287, - September 28, 1908, 54 contracts
closed as against 25 the same date, 1907,

288. 1127 motor-cars of the 1908 models
were manufactured and shipned.
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290,

The +total cost of all insurance during'
1908, ineluding liability, employes' bonds,
etz., was about $9,000.

Jarly in the fall of 1908 a frame wuild-
ing was erected for the inspection of aulomo-
piles. This is a one story building, 100 x
42 -£t,, with a second story addition of 34
ft. on the west end to be used for a study
room for instruction department.

Tarly in the fall of 1008 it was de-
ternined that the 190¢ models should be
limited to 1200, a larger percentage being
of hirher horse-power than in 1908, and that
the outnut should be completed as early as
June, 1509, and that the 1910 shipments
should follow on directly without a breek.
Thi's method would inarease the factory
output without materially increasing the
investment.

Marcsh 10, 1908, the first departmental
meeting was held. This inzluded the heads
of all departments and was for the purpose
of discussing subjects whizch would be of
general interest to all -epartments. MNeetings
held every two weeks. MTr. 5., H. Stilwell
was apnointed Chairman,

November 9, 1908, the vplan which had
been in vogue since the automobile business
was first started, of having the stenoaraphers
under one head, was discontimed znd each
devartment became respunsible for the number
and effisiency of its stenographers.



294. Work on the extension of the
offices in Building P progressed rapidly
and the new portion was first occupied
November 10, 1908. The former office
gpace in Building B was then dismantled
and reconstructed into modern, up to date
offices. The offices were re-furnished -
where necessary and modern equivment vnro-
vided. The South Geddss Strent entrance
to the office was closed and a new one
opened on West Marcellus Street.

The offices occupied since November,
1908, are the third suites of offices in
the present location--the first office in
the north end of Building A, occupied Jan-
uary, 1908; the next office, occupied in
the fall of 1904, on the first floor of
Building B. Additional spnace has also been
taken in the factory and in one of the V.
Marcellus St. houses. This makes the
sixth change in location of office and in-
crease in office facilities since the Com-
pany started business in 1892.

R295. " November 11, 1908, Mr. G. H.
Stilwell, Vice-President of this Company,
was elected a member of the Executive
Cormittee of the A. L. A. M. For some
time previous to this Mr. H. H. Franklin
had become dissatisfied with the manner
in which the A. L. A. }. matters had been
handled and had outlined to the members the
policy which he thought the management ought
to follow. Therefore the election of Mr.
Stilwell to the Executive Comittee was an
acknowledgement of approval of the Franklin
methods, and following that time the Asso-
clation largely followed the nolicy advocated



by this company. Under this plan of
running the Association a large part of
the royalties paid should be rsturned in
dividends.

296, November 17, 1908, a new model was
begun embodying all the improvements. Also
the first taxicab was completed on this date
and the first alcohol motor cab was delivered
in New York. This was an 18 h. p. cab, iden-
tical with gasoline motor cabs.

ree 2-'5“3

297, November 18, 1908, thera were, in
the Regular Department 19 dies in process
and 22 not begun. They are now running six
casting machines and will add another.

Experimental power casting machine

is being changed. Present plans call for air
pressure. A feature of the casting business
which is now growing, is the making of bushings
for automobile engines,

298, November 18, 1908 there were 121
dealer's contracts closed covering 1515
_automobiles.

229, Noverber 18, 1908 F. A. Barton was
given Power of Attorney to sign all drefts
and checks drawn by the Company.
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The total sales for November
1908 were the largest of any November in.
the history of the country.

December 1, 1908, the home
office of the Franklin Automobile Company
was practically abolished, the detail work
being taken over by the Branches.

December 1, 1908 there were orders
placed in the factory for 1000 1910 auto-
mobiles.

December 7, 1908 the name of the
department heretofore known as the "Regular
Devartment" was changed to Die-Casting De-
partnent.

December 15, 1908 there were 240
automobiles shivped with 292 shipping orders
unfilled.

December 1908 the purchasing of
material for the first 1000 1910 motor cars
was begun.

The oss sales for 1908 showed
a decrease of $853,380.00 over 1907.
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Jan. 1, 1909 285 1909 cars were shipped.

1, 1908 316 1908 " " "

" 1, 1909 584 shipping orders were filled
1,

1908 441 " " 1l n

Jan. 1, 1908 we had 111 dealers.
A1, 1909 we had 143 dealers.

Jan. 1, 1908 there were 42 exclusive dealers.
Jan. 1, 1909 there were 60 exclusive dealers.

Dﬁring the year 1908 8 salesmen were em-

ployed and 11 during 1909.

OQur foreign business amounts to very
little, practically the entire output being
sbld at home.

Jamuary 1, 1909 the company was
carrying $2,173,000 fire insurance, approxi-
mate cost of whioh was $5,000 per year. During
1908 there was no loss by fire.

In 1908 132 dies were ordered for
the Die Casting Department. The die shop was
run steadily and orders for 46 dies were placed
outside for construction.

The new customers for 1908 amounted
to 32.
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In 1907 the orders for die casft-
ings amounted to 730,161 and in 1908 they
amounted to 474,864, showing a decrease of
255,277 as compared with the previous year.

Jamuary 1, 1909, the members of
the Frenklin Mutual Benefit fociety had in-
creased to 542 and there was $1598.35 in
the treasury.

The sick benefit is $5.00 per
week, beginning with the second week of
illness, continuing 13 weeks, after which
time the mermber receives $2.50 not to exceed
13 weeks. Accident benefit is the same ex-

cept that the pay begins at time of accident.

January 1, 1909, the Franklin
trade mark was registered in 25 differ-
ent countries, 14 of the registrations hav-
ing been made in 1908. This was done with
the ides of protecting the forsign business
at such time as the business might extend
into those countries. Up to this time the
entire output could readily be sold in the
United States and but few shipments were nade
to foreign countries, but with the future in
mind it seemed best to lay the foundations
for future foreign business.
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The following statistics, compiled

January 1, 1909, give an idea of the amount
of business transacted during 1908:

Total freight and express paid during 1908 $29,694.65
Three frucks in constant use

Utilize 508 H. P. electricity every 10 hrs.

Average 12 tons of coal per day

Cost. of leather - 45,000.00
Cost of steel stampings 4,000.00
Cost of sheet aluminum 8,000.00
Forgings, Cost of 38,000.00
Cost of castings - 120,000.00
Cost of Steel 650,000.00
Average incoming letters per day 453
Average outgoing letters per day 792
Pieces advertising matier sent out 300,000
Postage for year 12,729.83
Telegrams received . 9,412
Telegrams sent , 6,021

Telephones - 67 interior with 7 extensions,
also five trunk lines.

-

Filled and shipped 654 freight cars
Thirty-three different trades represented in our factory.

318.

About January 1, 1909, the offices
in Building B, which were being re-modeled,
were completed and occupied. The offices now
covered the entire first floor of Buildings P
and B and the second floor of Building P, also
a part of the basement was utilized for certain

. purpeses in-connection with the office. There

were four fire proof vaults, one for correspond-
ence, one for the Accounting Department, one for
the Engineering Department.and one for storage
purposes.
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Jamuary 1, 18909, thers were 1664
employes, 15 more than the highest number
during 1907. This total was made up as
follows: .

Factory 1377
Factory office .72
0ffice, Main 150
Heads of Departments 13
Traveling mechanics 6
Demonstrators 6
Traveling salesmen 11l
Draftsmen 29

Estimates were made at this time,
January 1, 1909, that approximately 442 men
were directly employed on Franklin work in
other plants, making a total of 2106 employes

~connected with the Franklin output.

In a plant like fthat of the H. H.
Franklin Manufacturing Company in Syracuse,
with its 1,600 employes, the making of auto-
mobiles has brought such a diversity of in-
terests that thirfty-three trades are represented
in the factory proper, and in the offices as well
there is a great variety of specialized work.

An example of how office work has been so de-

veloped as to call for the services of trained
specialists is shown in the case of expert men
s tenographers.

Experiments with power machine were
not altogether successful and sxperiments have
been begun on another style.
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Jamuary 1, 1908 there were five dies
in process and one not begun. January 1, 1909
there were 24 dies in process and 1l not begun.

January 1, 1908 there were five
casting machines running, although not steadily,
with 861,000 castings on order, most of which
were held up. January 1, 1909 there were eight
machines running and 848,000 castings on back
order so it was found necessary to place one
or two more casting machines in use.

- One of the henefits derived from the
financial panic was due to our being refused
credit by the Standard 0il Co., which necessi-
tated our purchasing gasoline from an outside
goncern in carload lots, thereby saving $.01-3/4

per gallon.

January 1, 1909 practically all
orders had been placed for the first 1000

1910 motor cers and some material was beginn-

ing to come in.

Tanks have been placed in the ground
for the storage of gasoline, which will enable
us to get delivery in tank cars.
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New machinery was installed
during 1908 as follows:

Niekel Plating Plant

Enameling Plant

Sand Blasting Apparatus

Fire Vulcanizing Plant

-Western Union Watchman's System
Gasoline Storage.

The total cost of installing the above
equipment was $15,820.00.

Since the establishment of the
First Aid to. the Injured, April 9, 1907,
there have been 3,124 accidents. During
the past year the number of accidents has

‘decreased 50%, the former average being

220 a month as against 131 per month at

the present tine. The decrease in the
number of factory accidents is due to the
gystenatic effort made to protect dangeroua
places, machines, etc.

Factory Fire Department consists
of two companies of 1l men who are under
the supervision and instruction of the
Syracuse Fire Department. One hose cart
and two extension ladders were recently add-

ed to the fire equipment and a fire drill is
held each week.

-, - T L R Ry . -
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The real estate purchased in
1908 amounted to $1228.48.

The Sundry Dapartﬁent,sales

~ for 1908 showed an increase of $14,000

over 1907.

The Advertising expenses for
1908 showed a decreass of $50,000.00
as compared with the previous year, while
the increased free publicity was 50%
greater.

A Repairmen's School was started
December 14, 1908. 1In the school other
courses are maintained for other classes
of employes. The repairmen's course is
maintained in order that the Franklin Co.
may at any time furnish any of its two
hundred dealers, scattered from Maine to
California, with men whose intimate knowl-
edge of the Franklin car, gained by experi-
ence at the school and factory, fits them
to take charge of the dealers' repair shoms.

r

- The New York Automobile Show was
held January 16 - 21, 1909, at Madison
square Garden. At this Show more Franklin
sales were made than at any previous Show.
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The 1l4th Annual Meeting of the
Board of Directors was held January 27, 1909,
at which meeting the following officers were
elected for the ensuing year:

H. H. Franklin, President,
G. H. Stilwell, Vice-President
F. A. Barton, Secretary & Treasurer.

February, 1909, in order to relieve
the crowded condition of the main office, it
was decided to erect a small building on West
Marcellus St., just west of the office entrance,

. this building to be used for an Employment

O0ffice for the factory. This building was
ready for occupancy March 1, 1909, at which
time the Employment 0ffice was separated from

the Timekeeping Office to the convenience of
both offices.

About February 15, 1909 the Franklin
Reference Library was started, the object
being to provide technical reference books,
etc., for all employes of the Company who
care to avail themselves of it.

March 1, 1909 the membershin of the
Franklin Mutual Benefit Association was 864,
an inerease of 300 since January 1, 1909,

The membership in this assoclatlon is strlctly
voluntary.



339-

340.

341.

March 10, 1909 nearly all of
the output of Model D ecars for 1909 had
been specified. Only a few runabouts
were left up to this date.

March 15 there were 157 dealers.

March 24 to 27 an Automobile
Show was held in Syracuse under the aus-
pices of the Syracuse Automobile Dealers'
Association. Twelve thousand people
attended the Show and 6ver one hundred
cars were exhibited, the »roduct of more

“than thirty factories.

The exhibits were housed in the
new state armory, which was found to be
much too small to provide for all of those
who would have exhibited if the facilities
had been more extensive.- An effort will
be made by the Syracuse Automobile Pealers!
Association to provide larger quarters for
the 1910 Show.

Syracuse being the home town of
the H. H. Franklin Manufacturing Company,
this Company was given extra space and a
central location for its cars in the main
exhibition hall. Nine models, giving a
general idea of the fifteen which consti-
tufe the Franklin output, were shown.

0f its highest powered opsn cars
there was a forty-two horse power seven
passenger touring car and a four passenger
runabout of like power. In its twenty-
eight horse power class was a five pass-
enger touring car and a four passenger
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runabout. At eighteen horse power
there was a four passenger touring
car and a runabout with a single
rumble seat.

Also three closed cars were
shown, a brougham, which is the newest
Franklin model, being one of them.
This has eighteen horse nower and is
inside driven. Two landaulets, one
of twenty-eight and the other of eight-
een horse power, completed the list.

May 87, 1909, in order to
secure more room in connection with our
plant, it was found necessary to lease
the four-story building at the northwest
corner of South Geddes and West Fayette
Streets. It was in this building that

-the Franklin automobile industry was

housed seven years ago in the days of

its infancy, when fire destroyed -.all of
the work that was being done on the first
models,

As an index of industrial
activity figures are given herewith show-
ing the extent of the work of our Traffic
Department. These figures show that for
the past six months, constituting the first
half of the present trade year, the shin-
ments from the factory have aggregated
3,376,218 pounds.

The shipments received include
2,399,477 pounds of merchandise, which with
the addition of over 7,000,000 pounds of
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coal, 1,000,000 pounds of lumber and
gseveral hundred thousand pounds of other
commodities, makes a total of 11,367,675
pounds.

In this period 342 freight cars
have. left the factory carrying Franklin
automobiles to purchasers throughout this
country and abroad.

March 30, 1909 the first olass
graduated from the chauffeurs' course of
the automobile school started by us in
February, 1909. The membership of the
class included nine, six of whom were
from Syracuse and viecinity, one from
Vermont, one from New York City and one
from Saranac Lake.

March 24, 1909 the work of
building an additional story on Buildings
¢ and F was begun, making these buildings
consist of five floors and basement. The

e e

additional floor is 265 f£t. by 60 ft. and .

contains 15,900 sq. ft.

June 1, 1909 a new and larger

praspdwas installed in the Printing Depart-
ment, which will enable us to do nearly all
of our own printing. With the addition of

this new printing press the deparfment was
made twice as large as it was before the
new press was put in.
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June 1, 1909 the remaining
property on West Marcellus 3t., consisting
of five houses, was purchased by this Com-
pany. With the purchase of this property
the Company acquired a clear title to all
the land on West Marcellus St. between So.
Geddes St. and Harbor Brook.

About June 20, 1909, the delivery
of 1910 cars was begun.

5 June 21, 1909 the Annual Salesmen's
Conference was held, lasting one week.

June 21, 1909 the .Commercial Car
Department moved into their new quarters in
the Brown Building at the corner of South

‘Geddes and Fayette Streets.

| July 87, 1909 Mr. T. R. Lippard was
appointed Assistant General Manager of the
Franklin Automobile Company.

dJuly 80,1909 it was decided to
vublish a paper known as the Franklin News.

' Only matters of general interest, such as

Franklin School affairs, the Franklin Mutual
Benefit Association or any other matters of
special interest to our emploves, will be
published. :
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August 1, 1909 the Sundry Department
discontinued sending out traveling mechanics.

August 23, 1909 occurred the annual
shut-dowm of two weeks for inventory and
repairs.

September 1, 1909 the new addition to
buildings ¢ and F was completed and occupied
by the Paint Shop. This gives them an
additional space of about 15,900 sqg. f%.

Gatﬁlcg inquiries received during 1909

‘averaged 965 per month as compared with an

average of 677 during 1908,

The total sales for the fiscal years
ending September 1, 1908 and 1909 were as
follows:

Year ending Sept. 1, 1908 $2,761,962.00
Year ending Sept. 1, 1909 2,999,969.,00

$ '238,007.00

This shows an increase of nearly Sﬁ.l
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Up to September 1, 1909, there has been
manufactured and shipped 1332 motor-cars of
1909 models,

The total cost of all insurance during
1909, inecluding liability, employes, bonds,
etc., was about

October 4, 1909, a Salesman's School was
started in connection with the Repairmen's
School, 8chool opened with three members,

October 10, 1909 there were 58 contracts
closed involving 1532 motor-cers as compared
with 81 contracts closed involving 781 cars
on same date in 1908,

November 11, 1909, we purchased the pro-
verty at 708-710 Gifford Street from Patrick

‘Caufield for $4000,

In December 1909 the final test building
known as Bldg. S, was completud at a cost of
$703.54.

The 15th annual meeting of stockholders
was held in Jamary 1910, Officers and directors
from last year were reelected,

Followingz property was purchased in 1910:
4/28 734 Gifford St., Sarah A, Reed, $1800

5/10 728 " Addie Bussey, 4250
5/11 730-732 " " Joseph Hullar, 660G
5/28 720 * "  Henry M, White, 3500
9/14 738 " " F.J. & M.Kaufman $3600
9/14 788 L " 2000
10/19 712 " w P, McKenna 2500

1/10 702-704 " "  Mabel G, Ferguson 4250

In February 1910 we leased the Dey Time Bldgz.
at the corn. S. West & Tully Streets for storage

purposes.
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In June 1910 the Franklin Automobile
Company was capitalized for $300,000, and
of this amonnt $150,000 was issued, the H, H,
Franklin iHfg. Co. to subscribe and own all the
stock.

In August 1910. Bldg. T, the punch wress
room, was sompleted at a zost of $891.93.

Mr. Herbert Hess was avvointed General
Manager of the Frdnklin Automobile Company in
nlase of Ts R. Lippard, whose resignation was
az2ented Sentember 10, 1910. Mr, Hess was
also made a director in the Franklin Automohile
Company in place of Mr. Lippard.

_ The capital stock of the Franklin Automotile
Company was increased to $400,000, in October 1910.

In November 1910 the Ingineering Denartment

. was placed directly under the LExecutive Committee

with Mr. Arthur Holmes in charge as chief engin-
eer. This change was made in order to relieve
Mr., Wilkinson of the responsibility of the en-
gineering organization, he to continue as con-
sulting engineer.

Bldg. U (used as noise test) was completed
in December 1910. Cost $933.19.

In Hay 1910 we leased the entire 3Srown,
Gurtis & 3rown Bldg. at the corner of 7. Fayette
and Geddes Streets.

Franklin Automobile Company was incornorated
November 23, 1910, with five direotors--H.H.Franklin
G, H, Stilwell, John Wilkinson, F. A. Barton and
T, R, Liprard, each incorporator to take one share
of stock,. -



